A VISIT TO A TAO-IST TEMPLE (Page 410)



Edited by DAVID GOW

No. 2538. Vol. XLIX.

[Registered as Saturday, August 31, 1929. a Newspaper]

Price FOURPENCE

Entered as Second Class Matter, March 15, 1929, at the Post Office at Boston, Mass., under the Act of March 3, 1879 (Sec. 397, P.L. and R.)

Spiritual Advice and Help given by "DR. LASCELLES"

THE SEEKERS

29 Queen's Gate, S.W.7

MEETINGS SUSPENDED

UNTIL

SUNDAY, 1st SEPTEMBER

For previous addresses read "THE SEEKERS."
Published by The C. W. DANIEL CO., price 6/-.

The UNITY OF THE SPIRIT

Teaching the BOOK OF EL DAOUD, the Book of Eternal Remembrance

For particulars and appointments with Mrs. Kendle and Miss B. M. F. Robinson, apply to:

THE SECRETARY, MISS A. WILSHER.

Tel. Chandlers Ford 55.

Headquarters: Hazelwood, Chandlers Ford, Hants

ADVERTISE YOUR SOCIETY
IN "LIGHT."

"Light"—Its Scope and Purpose.

TEARLY fifty years ago LIGHT was founded to proclaim the reality of life after death as a fact in Nature, affirmed not only by the religious instinct in mankind and the visions and intuitions of saints, seers and sages, but by scientific investigation of psychical phenomena.

This position it has firmly maintained, and to-day it finds its justification in the gradual growth of the idea amongst all classes, for Spiritualism and Psychical Research have now become questions of the hour.

BEYOND this central idea LIGHT has no creed and is the organ of no school or cult. Its columns are open to free discussion of the many smaller questions on which there are differences of view—its only aim being, in the words of its motto, "Light! More Light!"

IT deals with all the complex phenomena which surround its subjects and presents a philosophy explanatory of them—Clairvoyance, Telepathy, Hypnotism, Mediumship, and the general question of Spirit-communication and guidance from the Unseen World.

AMONGST the contents of the present issue are:—

MEDIUMSHIP AND GENIUS.

CLAIRVOYANCE AND CRIME-DETECTION.

ON THE IDENTITY DIFFICULTY.

Some Helpful Books on

SPIRITUALISM

4th large impression

FACTS AND THE FUTURE LIFE

by the Rev. G. VALE OWEN.

The Rev. Vale Owen has in this work presented a number of his own personal experiences in connection with spirit communications and psychical research. Mr. Vale Owen states his own position in regard to many of the questions that are being discussed by theologians on the relation of Christianity to Spiritualism.

THE BLUE ISLAND.

Communicated by W. T. Stead

These experiences of a new arrival Beyond the Veil are recorded by Pardoe Woodman and Estelle Stead. Here are messages which are instinct with sympathy and cheer, and which, moreover, give an excellent picture of existence on the Other Side.

AU REVOIR-NOT GOOD-BYE.

By W. Appleyard, J.P.

In simple and direct manner the author tells the story of how he got into touch with his wife beyond the veil. It contains revelations and statements of a remarkable nature, and it is interesting not only for the style in which it is written but because its contents add to our knowledge of those who have passed over.

HEALING THROUGH SPIRIT AGENCY.

by "The Great Persian Physician Abduhl Latif ('the Man from Baghdad')," and information concerning the Lufe hereafter, of the deepest interest to all enquirers and students of Psychic Phenomena, written and compiled by E. H. Saunders (Collaborator in "The Return of George R. Sims"). 3/6 net.

HOW SPIRITS COMMUNICATE. By the Rev. G. Vale Owen
An authoritative work of deep interest which will be welcomed by the Rev.
Vale Owen's numerous admirers.

THE PRIESTHOOD OF THE LAITY. By the Rev. G. Vale Owen In Part I the author interprets Priesthood in the light of Spiritualism and shows it to be of the nature of a Psychic Faculty. Part II includes a short Service of Holy Communion for use in the Homes of the People, together with prayers and the Prince Prince of the Property of the aids to Daily Devotion.



Obtainable at all Booksellers and Libraries

& Co. (Publishers) Ltd., Paternoster Row. E.C.4

THE CONQUEST OF FEAR!

A remarkable new book, "The Conquest of Fear" (recommended by Editor of "Health and Strength"), describing the cause and cure of Self-consciousness, Blushing, Depression, Morbid Fears, Insomnia and kindred nervous disorders, sent privately to sufferers for 3d. only. Send for a copy now and you will be delighted to learn how easily you can conquer your nervous fears! nervous fears!

HENRY J. RIVERS (L.1.), 40 Lamb's Conduit St., London, W.C.1.

ASTROLOGY.

Obtain wonderful study of your life by an expert. Post 1/- P.O., birth date, stamped addressed envelope.
No interviews. Send now. You will be delighted.
Testimonials received from all parts of the world

Professor Barton, 13 Morley St. (L), Ashley Vale, Bristol.

CHALICE ORCHARD HOSTEL

GLASTONBURY, SOMERSET.

"The Holyest Erthe in Englande."

A GUEST HOUSE AND SOCIAL CENTRE FOR THOSE INTERESTED IN MYSTICISM, ESOTERICISM, NEW THOUGHT, SPIRITUALISM, AND KINDRED SUBJECTS.

Situated high on the shoulder of the Tor—the wonderful Hill of Vision of Avalon where "The veil is thin." Lectures. Library. Open-air life in sheltered garden and large verandahs. Vegetarian or ordinary diet.

Particulars may be had on application to-

The Secretary, CHALICE ORCHARD HOSTEL GLASTONBURY. Tel : 64.

THE NORTHERN PSYCHIC CORRESPONDENCE GROUP. (Charles W. Wood. M.B.C.P.S.)

A private group meeting annually in places of psychic interest for study, experiment and recreation. Maintaining contact through the medium of a quarterly "Budget".

Particulars: 31 BERWICK ROAD, BLACKPOOL, S.S.

DUL&SPIR

With an account of the Life after Death

By the Rev.

G. VALE OW

1/6 net

This little book is intended as a supplement to "What Happens after Death" and "How Spirits Communi-cate." Like these it is based on a lecture delivered in various places, in the present instance during the Winter Season of 1927-28.

It completes the series of three.

Obtainable at all Booksellers and Libraries



Also Publishers of HUTCHINSON'S MAGAZINE, 1s, monthly



BARGAIN LINE IN NEW BOOKS

	THE HARMONIAL PHILOSOPHY A Digest of the works of Andrew Jackson Davis	Published at 10/6
	THUS SAITH CELPHRA A Spirit Revelation Through Frederick H. Haines	5/-
	GONE WEST By J. M. S. Ward, B.A.	5/-
I	A SUBALTERN IN SPIRIT LAND By J. M. S. Ward, B.A.	6/-
ı	THE RELIGION OF THE SPIRIT By Stanley de Brath, M.Inst. C.E.	5/-
	THE RIDDLE OF THE ETHER By C. G. Sander, F.R.P.S., D.Sc.	4/6
	WHY WE SURVIVE By H. Ernest Hunt	2/6
-	A PSYCHIC VIGIL IN THREE WATCHES	6 -
	THE SOUL OF JACK LONDON By Edward Biron Payne	5/-
1		

Parcel No. L729. Nine Books, New, Cloth Bound, published price 49/6, for 21/-, carr. paid. Overseas 22/6.

THE TWO WORLDS PUBLISHING CO. LTD. 18 CORPORATION STREET, MANCHESTER his Di

po' reg

Po



A Journal of Psychical, Occult, and Mystical Research

"Light! More Light!"-Goethe.

"Whatsoever doth make Manifest is Light!"-Paul.

No. 2538. VOL. XLIX.

[Registered as SATURDAY, AUGUST 31, 1929.

a Newspaper.]

PRICE FOURPENCE

CONTENTS.

THE RESERVE TO THE PARTY OF THE				
Notes by the Way			 	4
Decease of Mr. J. Hewat McKenzie			 	4
A Visit to a Tao-ist Temple	**		 	4
Mediumship and Genius	**		 24	4
Past, Future, and the Problem of Time		**	 	4
Materialisation at a Spiritualist Church			 	4
Letters to the Editor			 	4
The Personal Side			 	4
"When the God Speaks"			 	4
Clairvoyance and Crime-Detection	2.0		 	4
"The Tiger Woman" and a Spirit Message			 	4
Sidelights			 	4
On the Identity Difficulty			 . 1	4
The Human Side of Telepathy			 	4
Kays and Reflections			 	4
A False Impression Dispelled			 	4
James Hewat McKenzie: An Appreciation			 	4
Affection and Judgment			 	4

NOTES BY THE WAY.

THE POWER OF THE EYE.

Mr. Simon Tappertit, the locksmith's apprentice in Dickens's Barnaby Rudge, firmly believed in the power of his eye to overpower those whom he regarded as enemies. When contending with foes he would begin by "eyeing them over", but in the long run his "glittering eye" did not seem to have been always victorious. Mr. Dick Swiveller, the gay reveller in The Old Curiosity Shop, seems to have practised a similar method of routing his enemies, for we read that in a hostile encounter with a jealous rival he eyed his opponent (doubtless with withering contempt), looking first at his face and then allowing his glance to fall gradually to his enemy's feet, and afterwards travel slowly upwards again. description in each case is an illustration of Charles Dickens's humour and his close observation of human kind, its tricks and its manners. The great novelist was quick to discern the droll side of everything, and he was rarely wrong in his observations. Even in his caustic satire of some forms of Spiritualism he did not ridicule anything that was not really ridiculous. And there is little doubt that although he made Mr. Tappertit a figure of fun, he would have readily allowed that the eye has really a magnetic power; that it is the means whereby we may soothe and subdue—provided always we have the interior power; that it is a register of character, and an index to physical health.

shed at

) 6

5 -

6

"THE WITCH OF ENDOR".

It has already been noted that this story is treated by Hebrew scholars as a satiric fable, and if this is really the explanation an immense amount of discussion and commentary upon it has simply been wasted. Our correspondent, V.B.M., however, does not accept this view, but attributes it to the tendency of scholarly folk to indulge in esoteric interpretations of Biblical statements that are better understood when treated as facts. Certainly the Higher Critics have gone very much astray in this direction. Our correspondent rightly holds that the Endor story is at least true to type, psychically regarded. He points out that Saul's visit to Endor indicates "a very real, if unsatisfactory, belief in personal survival". And Samuel, when he appeared, was very much the same man as he had been in the flesh. His speech was forcible and uncomplimentary. He rebuked Saul in characteristic fashion. V.B.M. suggests that on the

subject of spirit-return there was a priestly view and a popular view, and that these views were in conflict. Further, that in the Old Testament we get only the priestly view. But we are inclined to think that it is time the Endor story had a rest. We are more concerned with the living values of to-day than the "mouldering records of a barbaric past".

SPIRITUAL HEALING.

In the May-June issue of the Anti-Vivisection and Humanitarian Review appears a letter from our friend Major Hilder Daw on "Spiritual Healing". He traces the failure of Healers to gain official recognition to the fact that as a body they are unorganised and are "mixed up with charlatans". He claims that only about twenty per cent can really be called spiritual healers. Further he declares:

> It is not possible to obtain recognition until we set our house in order; until we combine together the genuine healers or Mediums from all ranks in life and from all climes; until those healers are aided in their development by the more experienced; until we repeal Archaic laws and substitute in their place a law to protect the credulous dupe; and until we acknowledge the Christian doctrine of healing.

Although officialdom and orthodoxy still appear to hold the field in healing, as in other matters, it is none the less true that in the Church, and in the medical profession also, there are signs of change. Not long ago we referred to an important book by a medical man of standing who boldly claimed that the cure of all diseases is closely related to the spiritual principle in man—a very significant statement.

DECEASE OF MR. J. HEWAT McKENZIE.

We much regret we have to record the death of J. Hewat McKenzie, who passed away on the 21st inst., at a nursing home, after undergoing an operation for intestinal trouble, making a peaceful end.

The funeral took place at Golders Green Crematorium on Saturday last, when addresses were given by Mr. Dimsdale Stocker, (who conducted the service) Mr. Hendry, and Mrs. P. Ch. de Crespigny. The floral offerings were numerous and very beautiful.

It will be remembered that in Light of the 20th ult. we gave some account of Mr. McKenzie and his work, referring to the fact that he founded the British College of Psychic Science in 1920 and until 1925 bore the full cost of the enterprise. We join with their many friends in expressions of sympathy, with Mrs. McKenzie, the widow, and the bereaved family, knowing that, as always in these cases, the shock of separation will have been greatly softened by their knowledge of the reality of survival and the possibility of communication between the two worlds.

An appreciation by Mrs. de Crespigny appears on page 418 of this issue.

MRS. MCKENZIE and family wish to thank all friends for their kind expressions of sympathy, and flowers.

we

A VISIT TO A TAO-IST TEMPLE.

By E. A. S. HAYWARD, O.B.E.

We had often heard of "sand-divining" in China by mediums using a kind of planchette, but foreigners rarely have an opportunity of seeing it.

Last year, however, my wife occasionally visited a curio shop in one of the back streets of Hong Kong, going through the long process of bargaining for an article which had taken her fancy. During one visit she had an unusual experience, feeling a strong psychometric influence whilst handling a curio she had picked up to examine. She had by this time become well acquainted with the proprietor, and she had the fancy to ask him to take it in his hands. This he did, and began to sway as if about to go in trance. This incident led to a series of talks on religious and psychic subjects with the man, Lam Yat. Early in the proceedings I also met him, and learnt to appreciate his high ideals, so different from those of the usual Chinese shopkeeper. Our chats were severely handicapped by the fact that Lam Yat, although most intelligent and spiritually minded, could only talk to us in "pidgin English", resorting occasionally to a picturesque Chinese-English word book, when he wanted to express ideas beyond the scope of his limited vocabulary.

We learnt that he was a Taoist, a strict vegetarian, averse to the destruction of any animal life for food, and that he and his brother, his partner in business, belonged to a "Tong", or Society of some 150 members, who worshipped at a private Temple across the Harbour, at Kowloon Old City on the Mainland. We also ascertained that there was a celebrated diviner attached to this Temple, the principal services at which were held on nights of the full moon, the 15th night of the Chinese lunar month, a most auspicious time in the Chinese Calendar.

Lam Yat promised to obtain permission for us to visit the Temple during one of the services to see the divination in progress, knowing that we were not doing so out of mere curiosity. Eventually, all was fixed for the full moon of December last, but, much to our disappointment, a serious outbreak of small-pox occurred, with special virulence at Kowloon. This necessitated the postponement of our visit, and as the outbreak persisted for some months we were afraid that we should leave China without seeing it. Fortunately, our friend was able to obtain permission for us to attend the ceremony at the May full moon.

Lam Yat, clad in a long creamy-white robe, called for us at about 9 p.m.

It was a glorious moonlight night, but very hot and humid. We had, first, a motor ride of several miles to the old walled City, where we had to take rickshaws along mysterious narrow paths through paddy fields, the only artificial lights to be seen being those from dim oil lamps in mud huts of the farmers, who, with their families, were seated outside on the walls, fanning themselves to keep off mosquitoes and to get a little coolness from the air. All around could be heard the croakings of innumerable bull-frogs, and the strident whirrings of cicadas.

After a long ride we reached the Temple gate, beautifully decorated with banners plentifully splashed with ideographs. We were led up a long path under a pergola covered with flowers, and with flowers on either side, to a kind of reception room, where members of the "Tong" could sit and chat before and after the services, which were held in one or

other of two Temples in the grounds. On the walls were hung copies of many special ideograph messages received through the instrumentality of their trance medium.

After a short rest and introduction to leading members of the "Tong", we had to take off our shoes, and put on special slippers, which, later, we had also to take off and stand in our stockinged feet when led into a room where we saw a number of men wearing long blue robes. Two were standing at a high desk with large books in front of them, and with writing brushes in their hands. These were taking down the ideographs traced by the medium, who was standing in front of a tray powdered thinly with fine sand. His eyes were closed, and he gave us the impression of actually being in trance, and unconscious of his movements. The planchette was formed of two thin pieces of willow-wood, the longitudinal piece being curved round to a point at one end. Near the end farthest away from the point was a short transverse piece, which rested across the back of his fingers, which acted simply as a support, and in no way guided the movement of the instrument, which was in constant motion. Sometimes the pointer would move aimlessly for quite a while over the surface of the sand, and then start to form a series of ideographs, which were carefully watched by two or three members standing by for the purpose. They would at once call out the characters to the scribes, who kept a detailed account of the writings obtained. Another member would then give the tray of sand a shake, and so furnish a fresh surface for further

The medium had been at work for some time before we arrived, but we were able to watch him for about fifteen minutes before he stopped, and in a short time returned to normal, when we were introduced to him, but he could only speak Chinese. We were told that he was tired, and needed a rest, and it was uncertain whether he would be able to do any more that night, but if so, he would try to obtain an answer to any question, not relating to material things, which we wished to ask.

We gathered that questions were usually written beforehand, and were not shown to the medium. The replies are apparently often of a "sybilline" nature, and the messages have at times to be carefully studied, before the meaning of the "Joss", i.e. spirit, can be understood. We also heard that poems of a transcendent nature, far beyond the mentality of the medium, or of those present, are occasionally received, tending to the assumption that such communications are inspired, and do not arise from the sub-consciousness of the "diviner".

Whilst the latter was resting, we were taken to the Main Temple, where a service was about to start. The services are conducted by members of the "Tong", who are "Lay Brothers" rather than Official Priests. They invariably fast for twenty-four hours before taking part in a service, and withdraw for meditation and preparation into the quietude of the Temple precincts.

According to their belief there must always be an odd number of celebrants, and in the service, which we witnessed, there were seven. They were all dressed in long green robes, yellow stoles about five inches wide around the neck, and a peculiarly shaped black hat of crinkly material on the head.

On entering they lined up in front of the Altar, on which were offerings of fruit, food and flowers. The sacred candles and joss sticks were lighted, and

the celebrants then proceeded to go through a series of "kow-tows", or genuflections before the Joss, three stepping one pace behind, and then the four, alternately.

The service then started with a high-pitched chant in a minor key, punctuated at intervals by ringing of bells, and strokes on a musically-sounding bar of metal. The chants changed from time to time, and "kow-tows" were performed by the Chief celebrant, on this occasion, Lam Yat's brother, or by all the seven together.

We remained interested spectators for quite a while, but, as the service was to continue for the greater part of the night, we quietly withdrew, as we could not even stay till midnight, at which hour they believe that spirits can exert the greatest influence upon dwellers on earth.

On enquiry, Lam Yat ascertained that the medium was too tired to do any more work that night, so we were unable to see what kind of answer would

be given to our question.

This "Tong" has two special forms of charity; one, the free distribution of medicine to the poor; the second, to buy captive wild birds on sale in the markets and set them free.

Before leaving the Temple grounds we accompanied Lam Yat so that he might place lighted incense-sticks and "kow-tow" before the Spirit Tablet of his old father.

To show our sympathy with his filial piety, we also lighted some incense-sticks and placed them in

position.

ages

ance

ding

10es.

also

hen

men

at a

and

vere

um

inly

ave

and

Was

1gi-

one

was.

ack

ind

ent,

ter

he

1es

NO

ey

es,

ed.

1d

er

10

or

a

0-

Ve

10

ny

an

en

he

re,

ed,

be

115-

the

ed,

ons

115-

to

art.

the

cial

HITS

for

the

ricer vere bout arly d. We came away with a feeling of peace, and realised that these Tao-ists, most of them men of business, or shopkeepers, were, in their own particular way, striving to follow the Path of The Master, and were willing to make many sacrifices in the endeavour to lead a life of integrity, purity of thought, and abhorrence of cruelty.

MEDIUMSHIP AND GENIUS.

By Horace Leaf, F.R.G.S.

There is no need to feel embarrassment at the possession of mediumistic powers. This may sound strange, but I know many sensitives who feel a certain shyness in having to admit that they possess pychic

gifts.

Mediumship is akin to genius, and there is no occasion to feel ashamed of possessing genius. It has long been recognised by qualified Psychical Researchers that mediumship comes in the category of genius. The Genius may be defined as a person possessing extraordinary capabilities along a certain direction. These particular qualities cannot be taught, or learned, and are not merely the product of hard work. They are something outside the range of the individual's will or consciousness. In short, genius is dependent upon inspiration. The ancient Romans attributed this inspiration to independent spiritual force—a familiar spirit presiding over the destiny of the privileged person. This implication of a spirit guardian has been, in the course of time, gradually eliminated from the word; but nevertheless genius is as big a mystery as ever.

It is possible that Mediumship will lead back to the old Roman idea of a spirit co-operator. At present the inclination is to ascribe genius to the operations of the Subconscious; but too little is known of this area of mind to permit anyone to speak authoritatively on the point. The theory, however, presents no difficulty so far as Mediumship is concerned, as supernormal faculties are undoubtedly subliminal. People do not see clairvoyantly with normal eyes, nor hear clairaudiently with the normal ear. A careful consideration of the action of supernormal faculties leads to

the conclusion that their source is in the subconscious-

The points of resemblance between genius and Mediumship are unmistakable. Most geniuses tend to be rather childish and vain. They are pleased and perplexed with their power, inclined to be boastful, and work as if it were play. Their faculty is spontaneous and may manifest at any time, and is quite beyond the ability of ordinary normal individuals, although they may put themselves into the condition most conducive to it. While associating themselves with their production, they nevertheless view it in an impersonal way. The work produced by a genius may be useful or useless, but it must be expressed, which may explain why so many have died in poverty, unrecognised in their generation, and perhaps why so many have become mentally unbalanced. Only those who produce results useful or pleasing to their fellows are appreciated and rewarded.

If their work is unconventional they may be execrated and persecuted. This has been the experience of many, especially those gifted philosophically and religiously. In time the work of the persecuted genius may win recognition and his name be revered and praised. This was the case with Jesus of Nazareth, the Buddha, and Swedenborg; Mediumship is

undergoing a similar experience.

Goethe's belief that if children grew up according to early indications we should all be geniuses, applies very closely to Mediumship, for most children appear to have latent psychic faculties, but are discouraged by their parents, who in ignorance attribute their strange experiences to "imagination".

Discrimination must be made between imagination and those operations which have a supernormal origin. It often takes an expert to tell the difference. That is one reason why all would-be Mediums should seek

in their unfoldment the advice of an expert.

Temperament has a good deal to do with genius; it also has with Mediumship. The best Mediums are usually extremely sensitive and self-conscious, their nervous system being highly strung, not, however, in a pathological way. During the development of their powers a decided change may occur for the better, giving rise to a sense of satisfaction, similar to that felt by the genius when he has given expression to his inspiration. There is, in both cases, a sense of relief at having "got out of his system" something which caused a feeling of unrest.

Genius is largely dependent on heredity; so is Mediumship; but in both cases there are notable exceptions to the rule. Neither genius nor Medium depends so much upon environment as upon heredity. Every class of society may produce examples of both of a high order. Nor are they dependent on intellect. Some geniuses have been below normal in education and intelligence. Only occasionally, however, have geniuses been imbeciles. The same remarks apply to

Mediumship.

It has been observed for centuries that geniuses are often rather morbid and given to fits of melancholy and excitement. Both moods are common to good Mediums. Genius must have an innate capacity, so must Mediumship. But everybody appears to be gifted with some degree of Mediumship, just as everybody is endowed with a degree of genius along one direction or another.

Huxley was near the truth when he compared geniuses with biological "sports". That is, they have all the ordinary qualities, plus some individual peculiarity not usually found among their type. The analogy must not be pressed too far, as there is an immense difference between the psychological states involved in genius and Mediumship and the physical conditions of biology.

Do not be ashamed of Mediumship. To develop it may raise people out of the common order, but it places them in the van of evolution, and puts them in the company of the best examples of the human race.

written

in unne

able to

as I a

or of

suffic

valid

Let

while

I sta

IS

tire

rea

PAST, FUTURE, AND THE PROBLEM OF TIME.

By J. L. AMES.

In my previous article in Light I endeavoured to indicate a line of thought that might lead us to realise the fact that the real Past is not a mere fixed record of events; that it is inextricably mingled with the present; that in a very true sense it can be altered and is in reality part of ourselves. Recorded History is nothing but a catalogue, and, what is more, a catalogue that is out of date. It no more consists of the real past than a tradesman's catalogue consists of the goods that he has for sale. Let us follow up this line of thought and see if we can obtain thereby a truer idea of the future and throw any light on the

mystery of Time itself.

What exactly do we mean by the word future? Most people would say at once: "Why! the things that are going to happen, of course!" Exactly! We are again deluded by the idea that the future consists of events that have not yet occurred. Supposing that when I am asleep my dream-consciousness, or my sub-conscious mind, or whatever we elect to call that part of ourselves that dreams, shows me a railway accident in which I appear to be involved, and if subsequently in waking life I find myself in a railway accident that corresponds in detail to that of which I dreamt, is it therefore true to say that at the time of my dream my Future consisted of a railway accident? Obviously not; how can my future consist of a thing that does not exist? The idea is an absurdity.

If my Past does not consist of events that have ceased to exist how can my future consist of events that have never happened? If it is true to say that the real past is part of the present and part of ourselves, is it not equally true to say the same of the Future? May we not regard it as our personal relation with, and our attitude towards, experiences as they come to us? What have we done that we should find ourselves up against this mystery of Time, racking our minds with unanswerable questions, and being faced with this hopeless impossibility of being able to understand our experiences? Surely we must conclude that somehow we have taken a wrong turning and got off the true path; and that is exactly what

we have done.

The whole crux of the matter is that we find insuperable difficulties in refraining from looking upon ourselves as something distinct and apart from our environment. Professor J. S. Haldane, in his recent remarkable book, The Sciences and Philosophy, makes this point very clearly. He shows in the most unanswerable way that it is impossible for us to make headway so long as we look upon ourselves as one thing and the Universe as another. So long as we continue to regard ourselves as living conscious beings, Spiritual beings if you like, but existing in (i.e., standing out from) a Newtonian Universe of objects and happenings, we shall remain in the old rut, endeavouring fruitlessly to cut up our Consciousness into water-tight compartments of Past and Future and so turning it into Space which is a mere nothing. The Universe is ourselves and we are the Universe. We must freeze on to that idea, incomprehensible as it seems, and when sense-impressions seem to contradict it we must drive these senseimpressions from us with all our strength.

Science comes to our rescue by reason of her very failure to answer the questions, "What is it all? And what does it mean?" When we ask, "What is this physical Universe that we see around us?" she points to a row of symbols and mathematical equations and she tells us in the words of Professor Eddington.

"Something unknown is doing we don't know what."* We ask again in despair, "Can't you tell us something of its nature?" and again she replies, " All through the physical world runs that unknown content which must surely be the stuff of our consciousness."+ She has led us along a great road of knowledge and discovery and eventually we reach the unknown shore beyond which she can guide us no further; she can only point to a footprint in the sand that we recognise as our own. It rests with ourselves whether we remain with her on the shore or whether we embark in the ship of Faith and set forth on the great quest.

And what is our Faith to be? Surely that the Universe is a Spiritual Universe; that it is a throbbing, palpitating, living spiritual organism, and that we ourselves are at once part and at one with it; that it is alive, and that its life is our life. There is no dividing-line between the spiritual and the physical; such separation is impossible. Such then must be our Faith, and when we think of God, what truer or grander conception could we have of Him than that He is this very Life of all that is, other aspects of

which are Truth and Love?

And what of Time? I suggest that we interpret that experience as follows. Time is a geographical corollary due to the rotation of the Earth upon its axis. It is a question of longitude. The feeling of the passing of Time to which we are all victims is nothing but a kind of mental giddiness, the result of these perpetual revolutions: it is a psychical counterpart of that physical sensation that we have when we sit on a whirly-go-round and see the houses and the trees and the people flying past us in sickening repetition. Mentally stupefied by this giddiness, which has become hereditary and chronic, and fascinated by the rhythm of night and day, man began to count the revolutions. He also became aware of the greater rhythm of the seasons and began to count them, too; hence our system of dates and calendars. Sometimes man lost count, giving rise thereby to our many perplexities in the chronology of History. This giddiness, this chronic mental disease, is largely responsible for our generally taking the objective view of existence rather than the subjective view of "becoming". The former leads nowhere, and the latter is the Truth.

MATERIALISATION AT A SPIRITUALIST CHURCH.

Mr. Max Gittleson, London, W.2., writes as follows:

On Sunday, 11th inst., Mrs. Lilly, the well-known healer and Medium, attended the Battersea Christian Spiritualist Church, in Voltaire Road, Battersea. Remarkable evidential messages were given through her mediumship. After the service she gave free healing and her spirit brother "Joe", a very humorous guide. controlled and said that the Medium's spiritdoctor was in the other room, and he was leaving to join him.

Strange to say some fifty of the audience saw the materialised form of the spirit-doctor who remained about twenty minutes while the healing was in progress. The room was in half-light and he was seen to move about quite freely.

Mr. Gittleson adds some remarks concerning the powerful mediumship of Mrs. Lilly; but it would be more satisfactory if such cases, as that recorded above, were fully authenticated by the signatures of the sitters who claim to have seen the materialisation.

FAERY INVESTIGATION SOCIETY.—A lantern lecture by Captain Q. C. A. Craufurd, R.N., the founder of the society, will be given at No. 5, Smith Square, London, S.W.I, on September 11th. Full particulars of this, and other meetings of the society, can be obtained from Mrs. Cantion. 10, Cliveden Place, Sloane Square, S.W.1.

^{*} The Nature of the Physical World. A. S. Eddington. † Space, Time and Gravitation. A. S. Eddington.

31, 1929

th it; that here is no physical; ist be our truer or than that

spects of interpret graphical 1 its axis. g of the nothing of these rpart of e sit on he trees petition. become rhythm lutions. of the ce our

ian lost

lexities

ss. this

or our

rather

former

ites as idential umship. and her

spirithe was nce saw or who healing

guide.

health alf-light alf-light the ning he rould be of the of lisation.

LETTERS TO THE EDITOR.

The Editor does not necessarily identify himself with the opinions expressed by Correspondents

REFRESHMENTS TO VISITING SPEAKERS.

Sir,—I have read with great interest the message of "Feda" to the Spiritualist societies with regard to offering refreshment to visiting mediums before the meetings, but "Feda" has not had the experience of working through a medium on the platform. I know the exhaustion one feels after one has conducted a meeting, and perhaps there is a long and often disagreeable journey to take before reaching home and in these circumstances a cup of tea or coffee after a meeting is very welcome.—Yours, etc.,

ALFRED VOUT PETERS.

THE NATURALNESS OF SPIRITUALISM.

Sir,—A correspondent, a nominal Spiritualist, has written to me, protesting that I bring "the Spirits" in unnecessarily, to account for dreams, or some of them. "Why do this," he asks, "when we may be able to account for them [the dreams] by perfectly natural laws?"

But why regard Spirits as unnatural, or as something special? If Spiritualism is based on natural law, as I am thoroughly convinced, why be afraid of it, or of its logical inferences? It will probably explain many things hitherto unexplained, and in a more simple and direct way than is otherwise possible.

Being persuaded that this is so, I can see no sufficient reason why we should not pursue it to its valid conclusion, no matter where that may lead. Let us, of course, keep both feet on solid earth while doing it, using the conscious sanity with which we are supposed to be endowed.

My correspondent advances the psycho-analytic theory, but this requires me to swallow whole, before I start, some very unpalatable axioms having to do with sex. And further, he would have me consider the psycho-analytic theory as being natural law, while denying me the right so to consider Spiritualism.

No, Spiritualism as enunciated in "Light—Its Scope and Purpose" (on the cover of your journal) is just as much a matter of natural law as the Conservation of Energy, or Gravitation, or any other, and should be so regarded. Personally, I am a bit tired of Spiritualism being merely tolerated as a sort of outcast belief. The time has passed for that. We must view it with the respect and consideration to which it is entitled on the grounds of its entire reasonableness and normality, and because of its farreaching implications and importance.

Among the creeds of the world, isn't it about time that Spiritualism should drop the apologetic rôle of poor relation which has been thrust upon it?—Yours,

REINCARNATION AND JUSTICE.

P. REGINALD PALETHORPE.

St. Augustine, Florida.

Sir,—It is not surprising that you should weary (as you say in "Rays and Reflections" of the 3rd inst.) of the argument that "Reincarnation is the only way of vindicating the love and justice of God". The Deity cannot, of course, be thought to owe explanation to anyone; it is really that a modern group of thinkers basing themselves on ancient beliefs present to us a Being who, having allowed a creature to evolve to the status of man with a view to his admittance later to a different, heavenly, abode, has so mishandled the situation that this man has to be returned some thousands of times to the earth to correct his imperfections before he is fit for the place.

The best authorities, I notice, think man has been on earth as man (excluding his anthropoid or manlike existence) about a million years, so allowing five incarnations per 1000 years (it is, of course, pure fancy) we have had about 5000 tries at reformation. doesn't speak well for us. I am well enough aware that eminent men like Pythagoras once held this belief and that it cannot be disposed of so easily as all that. Much is made of the argument that only so can pure justice be satisfied. In that case man has expiated everything and cannot strictly be said to owe gratitude to anyone. He has trodden numberless times the road to his Calvary—"once more those weary steps I There is a complacent assumption that if we get justice meted out then, putting everything together we should pull it off all right at the end. In an earlier day whether it was that they were more conscious of error or not they did not seem so sure as e.g. in the Dies Irae: "What shall I, frail man, be pleading, when the just or mercy needing?" And Cervantes shows us Don Quixote giving sundry instructions to Sancho Panza prior to the latter taking on the government of the Isle of Barataria. "And if, Sancho, a guilty person comes under your jurisdiction look upon him as an unfortunate, miserable wretch, liable to the depravity of our common human nature and be when possible clement towards him for though all the attributes of God are equal yet mercy will ever shine more resplendent to our eyes than justice. . . ."—Yours, etc.,

E. HARVEY.

THE PERSONAL SIDE.

MR. W B. YEATS.

Mr. Yeats is primarily a poet, and a distinguished one. As Mr. Robert Lynd—the well-known literary critic—said recently, a European seal was set on the fame of Mr. Yeats by the award of the Nobel prize a few years ago.

But the poet, as most of us are aware, has for many years been interested in psychical matters, and we can recall his part in making known the discoveries of the late Professor Crawford, of Belfast, in connection with the Goligher circle. This sufficiently proved that Mr. Yeats took more than a poetic orsentimental interest in the subject—he realised the scientific values. This was during the War, since which Mr. Yeats has become an Irish senator and greatly developed his powers as poet, author and dramatist, as shewn by some of his later works. It is some fitteen years since he addressed the London Spiritualist Alliance on the subject of "Ghosts and Dreams". A portrait of him appeared in LIGHT at that time, with some brief particulars of his career, as that he was born in Dublin in 1865, and that he had devoted much time and study to psychical research on which he proposed to publish a book embodying the results of his labours in that direction. That book, we believe, has yet to make its appearance, and in that case it should be greatly enriched by his experiences in the intervening years. A man of outstanding powers of mind, in addition to the penetrating vision of the poet, Mr. Yeats, after a long and wide study of our subject, is eminently qualified to speak as an authority, and from his own point of view as a mystic, as well as a psychical researcher.

[&]quot;I CANNOT really say that I can account for my compositions. My ideas flow and I cannot say whence or how they come. I do not hear in my imagination the parts successively, but I hear them, as it were, all at once. The rest is merely an attempt to reproduce what I have heard."-MOZART.

Os

LIGHT.

Editorial Offices, 16, QUEENSBERRY PLACE, SOUTH KENSINGTON, S.W.7.

ALL COMMUNICATIONS FOR THE EDITOR should be addressed "The Editor of LIGHT, 16, Queensberry Place, South Kensington, London, S.W.7

SUBSCRIPTION RATES: -12 months, 22s.; 6 months, 11s.; or

from newsagents, 4d. weekly.

Subscriptions should not be sent to the Editor, but should in all cases be addressed to "LIGHT, 34, Paternoster Row, London, E.C.4". Cheques and postal orders should be crossed and made

payable to LIGHT.

AMERICAN and CANADIAN subscribers are reminded that the price of Light is 8 cents weekly, and that the subscription ratesalthough varying slightly according to the rate of exchange—work out approximately at \$5.50 for 12 months and \$2.75 for 6 months; remittances can be made by International Money Order obtainable at all post offices, or from the foreign-exchange departments of most national banks. A sealed letter to England goes for the same postage as domestic letters of the first class.

ADVERTISEMENTS .- For rates, apply The Advertisement Manager, Light, 34, Paternoster Row, London, E.C.4. (Phone:

Central 1462.)

"WHEN THE GOD SPEAKS."

Even when we have settled the problem of what Inspiration means—whether the inbreathing into the mind of some guiding or controlling spirit, or the influence on the mind of a "thought-atmosphere" there are still some questions to be faced.

Is inspired work only that which is produced easily, without conscious effort? Can a story or a poem, upon which the man or woman of genius has had to spend long and painful labour, be also the result of inspiration? To our thinking the question turns on the kind and quality of the inspiration at work, and also the circumstances. We say of a dull piece of literature that it is "uninspired", but it may be none the less the work of a writer who can, under a strong inspiration, rise to great heights of excellence. Wordsworth is an instance in point. Much of his poetry is of a mediocre sort, but in "Tintern Abbey" and his "Intimations of Immortality" he shows rare poetical genius. There is no difference of critical opinion on that point. Some of Wordsworth's work is true poetry; the rest is for the most part very poor stuff-rubbishy. Was he inspired in the one case and not in the other? Certainly, if we are to accept the idea of inspiration at all. Shelley, Tennyson and Keats, on the other hand, show a more equal quality of merit. Some of their work is, of course, inferior to the rest. But all three were greater artists than Wordsworth, or at any rate gifted with more critical judgment. All of them seemed to be conscious at times of inspiration, for there are some significant allusions to the fact in their poetry.

We know what Plato and Socrates thought—that all really inspired utterances were given by "gods' through men. Thus we find Socrates referring to a wonderful poem by one Tinnicus, who composed a "Paean", which became famous and was sung and recited everywhere, and yet Tinnicus had never on any other occasion produced anything worth attention. To Socrates this proved that men may be at times inspired by gods to produce work beyond their normal capacity. To-day, of course, we should speak not of gods but of spirits, and should realise that the influence or "control" may vary in strength or be totally absent. We see this constantly in mediumship, realising that its results depend partly on the quality of the mediumship and partly on the presence of the "power". We know, too, that occasionally an inferior medium will yield excellent material just as a good medium will on occasions give very disappointing results. The "power" or inspiration may be present in one case and not in the other.

We are accustomed to think of inspiration in Art and of spirit control or influence in mediumship as entirely different things. But the two have probably much in common. The chief difference appears to reside in a personal factor. The medium refers to the influence under which he works as a personal agency, while to the poet or the artist the

source of inspiration is usually impersonal.

To Shelley and Wordsworth, for example, as their poems show, the inspiring influence at work was the Universal Spirit. Naturally, for it is a condition of all great Art that it shall be impersonal. Of the reality of inspiration, from wheresoever it may come, there can be no doubt. There is a spiritual world. It acts upon, inspires and influences us all in some degree, according to our grade of mind and soul. Those most responsive to it are always persons with some quality of psychic sensitiveness, and whether we classify them as geniuses or as mediums they are akin-cousins if not brothers. The "god" may speak in either, although the utterance may not be the same. In the one case it may be a spirit, in the other the Spirit—it is just the difference between the person and the Principle.

CLAIRVOYANCE AND CRIME-DETECTION.

The application of psychic faculty, notably clairvoyance, to the detection of criminals has been the subject of newspaper discussion of late. There are a sufficient number of instances as, for example, the Frau Gunthers-Geffers case in Prussia, to show the possibility of such a thing. But opinions amongst Spiritualists and Psychical Researchers differ sharply as to the advisability of employing psychics as "sleuths". It is considered by some to be a degradation of psychic gifts, and it is asked by these whether the aid of the spirit world should be enlisted to deal with matters which belong to an unsavoury side of earthly life. On the other hand, it is contended that no possible means of bringing criminals to justice should be neglected. In short, the dispute is one between the idealistic and the practical views of the

To us the first question which presents itself is whether our knowledge of psychic laws and psychic faculty is sufficiently advanced to warrant a resort to the supernormal for crime detection as an adequate and practical method. Here and there, as we know, the method succeeds. But when it is established that it affords a reasonably trustworthy means, then the question of its morality will become more definite. As we know, psychical faculty, like telegraphy, is neither moral nor immoral in itself; a medium may be a person of saintly life or very much the reverse without detriment to the mediumship considered in itself. And the Unseen World contains every variety of character, disposition and point of view. It has its angelic regions, and its regions which are not so angelic—to put it mildly—so that the question of degradation of a faculty is seen to be merely relative. The beginnings of many new discoveries and inventions have been attended with the denunciations of those who dreaded lest the new thing might be turned to evil ends. To the practical mind it would seem to be first necessary to perfect the invention and so give the good and the bad uses an equal chance. But whether the detection of crime and criminals is a bad end is another question, and one that ought not to be difficult of solution.

FELLOWSHIP.

As the lone star, heaven-born, and iris-eyed, Dawns with her Sisterhood upon the night, Until the distances throb far and wide With all the miracle of borrowed light— So even is the lonely soul of man Born into fellowship with other souls, That each may help to bridge the mighty span, So dark but for their blended aureoles. F. E. K. (From Sonnets and Lyrics.)

SIDELIGHTS.

By R. H. SAUNDERS.

SPIRIT WARNING.

"THE TIGER WOMAN" AND A

There has recently been published an extra-ordinary "human document", The Tiger Woman.* Here we have a remarkably frank account, with nothing extenuated", of the life of that singular character, Betty May, as related by herself. It is an exemplification of the old maxim that truth is stranger than fiction.

From the squalid purlieus of Limehouse, where she lived with her three brothers, sister and mother in one room, to the aristocratic regions of Belgravia, where champagne of the costliest brand replaced the gin and beer of her childhood, all is described without reticence. Betty May came of gipsy stock and seems to have possessed some kind of psychic power (not, however, of a particularly spiritual order), as a score of incidents related in this remarkable book illustrate in a forceful manner. One of these is connected with the obtaining of a supernormal picture under conditions that appeared to rule out any question

The second marriage of Betty was to Raoul, a talented scholar, who took a First in history at Oxford, was a deep student of Egyptology, and had full belief in the maleficent powers of the mummified body of Princess Amen-Ra in the British Museum. He took his wife to view the mummy but the young lady put out her tongue at the Princess in derision. Raoul was deeply stirred at this insult and prayed that any evil spell which might result should not affect Betty but should be placed upon him. Whether this had any connection with Raoul's tragic end we do not know. On the day of their marriage at Oxford, as they were walking through the gardens of one of the Colleges, a friend suggested that a snapshot should be taken of the newly-married couple. When developed the plate shewed, over the head of the husband, an "extra"—the form of a slenderlybuilt young man looking as though asleep or dead, the arms raised slightly behind the head, while the head drooped gently to one side. All were amused at what they termed this "spook" photograph. But some months later, after a series of adventures, rivalling those of Gil Blas, Raoul died at an abbey in Sicily, after taking part in some unpleasant rites of a "black magic" order. His wife writes: "When I came to [she had fainted] I was led into the room where my husband had died. He lay there on the bed, his arms raised slightly, behind the head, and the head drooped forward slightly, in exactly the same position as the spirit form on the photograph taken on our wedding day. 'It had been a warning."

DECEASE OF PROFESSOR ZANCIG.—We learn of the passing, on July 29th in California, at the age of 72, of Professor Zancig, the "psychic impressionist", whose thought-reading performances caused so great a sensation in London some years before the War. A good deal of controversy raged at the time as to the genuineness of these experiments in "thought transference". A considerable body of public opinion, including scientists and psychic students, were quite convinced that the professor and his partner had succeeded in reaching a high degree of proficiency in the art of thought-reading, although it was held that on a number of occasions they fell back on a clever code of signals. Some years ago a weekly paper published what purported to be the "great secret" of Zancig's performances. Professor Zancig, we are informed, suffered considerably during the last three or four months of his life and was frequently in great pain. Two major operations were performed within ten days. In a letter to Miss Estelle Stead, Mrs. Ada Zanzig writes: "There is no death, and I have already held sweet communion with some of his friends who brought him to me in the garden it seemed for a second or two. . . . I know he is in good hands and will help me when possible."

* Duckworth. (10s. 6d. net.)

Miss Margaret Bondfield, the first woman Cabinet Minister in this country, stayed for a week-end recently at Hulham House, Exmouth, as guest of Dr. Salt, the principal. The Exeter Express and Echo of August 6th says that Miss Bondfield was deeply interested in the healing methods employed, and expressed the hope of making a return visit to Hulham House next spring.

Poltergeist manifestations are alleged in the village of Little Irchester. Mr. and Mrs. E. Rogers, who lodged in a house in the village have been disturbed by mysterious footsteps, rappings on doors, and similar occurrences, according to the Daily Chronicle of August 14th. On one occasion wet footprints were discovered on the kitchen floor, while the silver was found to be scattered in all directions. Opinions are divided in the locality as to whether these things are due to psychic forces, or to the actions of an undetected practical joker.

Writing in John Bull, of August 10th, a correspondent, Miss M. M., of Birmingham, relates that she once visited a seaside fortune-teller's tent "just for fun". We are not informed as to the sybil's message for Miss M. M., but the writer goes on to tell how she persuaded a boy friend, who had been waiting outside the tent, to become a client of the fortune-teller. He agreed, but rejoined his companion a moment later, saying that "the old dame had refused to disclose anything".

Miss M. M. mentions that she did not believe him, thinking perhaps that the lad had his own reasons for reticence. But next morning, while bathing, the boy was seized with cramp, and drowned before help could arrive. That same afternoon Miss M. M. again visited the fortune-teller, informing her of the tragedy. "I knew it," said the latter. could not read his hand because he had no future."

An alleged case of "raising the dead" is related by The Star of August 13th, which reports that in a village near Mysore one of the local inhabitants, a man named Linga, who died early one morning, was being carried to the burial ground later in the day when a Yogi, who had followed the cortège, offered to revive him. The body was removed from the bier, and the holy man sat before it making gestures and uttering strange incantations. At the end of about half-an-hour, the corpse showed signs of returning to life; a few hours later the "dead" man revived sufficiently to walk home.

The Sunday Dispatch, of 11th inst., contains some remarks by the Rev. C. H. Griffith, of St. Leonard'son-Sea, highly appreciative of our friend Sir Frank Benson, now so prominent as an exponent of Spiritualism. Reference is made to his popularity at Winchester and Oxford, and to his feats as an athlete:—

At Oxford he won the three miles easily against Cambridge. He had a beautiful stride and looked like a young Greek god.

We also read that "no one knows how much he and his wife did for members of their [theatrical] company, keeping them straight and helping them in all sorts of ways." Allusion is also made to his association as a fellow-actor with Irving, when "everyone felt that he and not Henry should have been Romeo". The account concludes with this glowing opinion:

He is a great Englishman, one of the noblest of "Shakespeare's heirs".

ON THE IDENTITY DIFFICULTY.

CAPT. Q. C. A. CRAUFURD, R.N.

Almost the whole difficulty about Psychic Research in these days centres about the question of identity. Many people will remember the much discussed Tichborne case which turned upon proving the identity of a long absent claimant, who after being "recognised" as Tichborne by those who should have known best, was afterwards proved to be Orton. If therefore we are so limited in our methods of obtaining proof of identity that will satisfy a legal assembly, how is it possible to convince the Psychic Research worker who asks for scientific proof? There is no absolute proof available; no body of men have established a method of measuring the qualities that go to form identity. Moreover, there are two quite distinct portions of a person's individuality. There is his natural self, and there is that artificial self which is the result of education and circumstance. We come into the world equipped with a character made up of certain tendencies, gathered it may be, from the flotsam of heredity or (as I think) probably gathered in some past experience and modified no doubt by the hereditary tendencies of the body that has been chosen as our vehicle.

If we ask ourselves what we mean by our identity the answer surely is that it is our peculiar relation to the world around us which goes to form self-consciousness. If this description be accepted it is the influence which our peculiar way of looking at things bears upon our neighbour's that constitutes our iden-This may or may not be associated with our bodily form. Our appearance carries with it a suggestion of ourselves to those who know us, but it may carry quite a different suggestion to other observers. Do we hope for such a result when we

dress ourselves up in our finery?

I often feel that I would be irresistible in a pink top hat and green trousers (thus faintly resembling a rose); but my neighbours would probably not adapt their consciousness to the circumstances, and consequently, for them, I should lose much of my identity.

Now consider the difficulties that lie in such manifestations as we call "spiritual". The green trousers and pink top hat are an exaggeration but they illustrate the point that unless we harmonise with the conventions we are apt to appear ridiculous.

Attempts on the part of discarnate intelligences to communicate are often, it seems, done at second-hand, and it may be the intervening helper who throws the results out of harmony. For instance, I am often asked, when I claim to have script from Fairies, how I know that it is Fairies who communicate. The answer is exceedingly complicated but, in the main, I may say that it is entirely by experience, because they have been consistent throughout in little things, and it is just these little things that count for most. There may be helpers acting as intermediaries and it seems probable that there is at least one helper who prefers to remain unknown. When we telephone to our friends probably we are all aware of the helper at the exchange who is unidentified, but many of us do not pause to consider the necessity for such a "trained medium" of the Post Office. The efficiency of this helper is always mixed up with the telephone exchange, and communication is liable to fluctuate accordingly. Sometimes "Exchange" appears to be exceedingly stupid.

Yet through it all we get the voice of the speaker—tinny, no doubt, and flavoured with tramway symphonies—but the voice is there and recalls the identity of the speaker. But this voice we hear, through the telephone receiver, is in reality nothing but the movement of carbon granules in the micro-The human voice, as voice, is lost at the instrument, where it turns into varying resistances to an electric current, which affect a magnet at our end; our ear turns these magnetic variations into the

voice of our friend.

Where then is the identity? You identify your friend's manner of communicating mind to matter, you recognize the method of addressing the carbon granules; but I defy you to explain exactly how you know it is your friend doing these things in the distance.

The whole fabric of recognition of those about us is interwoven, of necessity, with subconscious association. Little tricks of the memory build up for us an image which enables us to make a recognition. It seems that we must come to this: there can be no recognition without the use of imagebuilding or imagination. What we have to be careful of is that we do not allow our image-building to run away with us, or, in other words, we must keep an open mind. The open mind will soon detect any flaw in the supposed communication by that very quality of instinct that we have already alluded to-

All species of fraud are inconsistent with reality in the end, but if some unseen communicator has built up a personality by repeated consistent behaviour I think we may take it that identity is established.

In my own psychic investigations I have been plagued with a certain amount of deception but have been able to identify it with deception, though occasionally I may have been mistaken and put down to fraud what was really a difficulty on the "telephone

exchange", as I have symbolised it.

It is my practice to gather as much evidence as there is available, and a practical joker (assuming that there is one at the "other end of the line"), if given a long enough rope, will get over-confident and overstep the boundaries of credulity. What does it matter if we are deceived in one or two instances during the course of researches? This is bound to be the case in things physical; and one does not judge by a single experiment. It is when a large number of observations all converge toward the same point that one obtains satisfactory evidence.

I will take, as an example, the evidence for Fairy existence. First there was the script obtained by myself; then there is the script obtained by other people. Next there is the evidence of numerous photographs; next there is the evidence of tradition and much oral testimony. Again there is the evidence I obtained with electrical detecting devices. Further, there is the behaviour of animals; and certain experiments with flowers and vegetation. There is, in fact, a very large accumulation of evidence, and it is idle for some person quite new to the subject to come along and say something rather witty about one single experiment. When, after repeated and careful observation, Galvani discovered the force that caused the muscles of a frog's leg to move, the whole matter was considered to be dispensed with at the time by nicknaming him the "frog's dancing

Nothing seemed less probable at the time than the connection between Galvanism and Electricity, and yet it was definitely shewn by later research

that the two things were identical.

In this mortal body of ours life is exhibited by means of that Galvanism which moves the limbs of a frog. That force is identical with the force used in broadcasting. The being who uses this force by the exercise of will power is an individual. In one case the individual may be a frog, in another case a human being, and in order to get at the individual we must not confuse the being with his instrument. The individual can only be known by long association, and identity must rest upon past knowledge. is the reason that it will be always impossible to convince a stranger of the presence of a personal friend who is invisible, for the stranger has never built up an image of the original with which the present can be compared.

I say, therefore, that the real test of identity is to be found when two or more people, who knew the visitor of old, are able to fit in his present manifestation of himself with the mind's image built up from former knowledge.

son never was conten side appar his though This ii

love may but it is whom I is all an extended others do integral v lay stress can be ri mind. to conv

subjects

repeated

tor we

the episo

class distant scious is per that mak

and Who and un la cons cond subs it w

image-

to be

uilding

e must

detect

it very

ed to.

reality

aviour

1shed

been

have

lough

down

phone

ce as

iming

"), if

fident

What

two

115 15

one

ward

lence.

Fairy

d by

other

rous

ition

ther,

rtain e 15,

and

pject

bout

and

that

hole

1 at

cing

than

city,

arch

by of

ised by

one case jual ent. ion, his to nal ver the is

RAYS AND REFLECTIONS. THE HUMAN SIDE OF TELEPATHY.

BY H. A. DALLAS.

When turning over again the pages of a little book, not as widely known as it deserves to be,* my attention was arrested by the account of a message delivered to a "busy man of affairs" sent through a clairvoyant personally unknown to him. The message was a simple one: "Ask him to think of me sometimes; I want him to think of me." This was accompanied by a description which the man recognised as that of his mother; and he "realised, with a pang, that since her death many years before she had hardly crossed his mind". Mr. Gow adds, "We see in this episode a tremendous text on this subject of telepathy as a human and not merely a scientific matter. How was it the mother was aware that her son never thought of her? In her life on earth she was contented with his presence. But on the other side apparently things were different. She wanted

his thought to supply its place." (p.74). This incident gives food for reflection and selfexamination. William Scott Palmer wrote: "My love may be in intention, and in my purpose, general; but it is effective only as, and when, and for him to whom I attend. The extension of my deepest life is all an extension of my love; but it implicates an extended range of attention. Only as I attend to others do they really become my own, sharing my life, integral with it and transforming it." In this life we lay stress for the most part on words and acts which can be recognised by the senses, but Christ stresses chiefly the thoughts of a man. The facts and the messages recorded in Spiritualist literature form an ample commentary on the text of the above episode; as I read it a small experience was recalled to my mind. I was with two friends; we were receiving messages through table tilts; during a pause we began to converse and our thoughts wandered to other subjects until the tilts began again; when we repeated the alphabet the words spelt out were: "Y gone" (Why gone?). Apparently to our communicator we had "gone" when our thought was switched off. This incident needs no comment; its bearing on the episode referred to is sufficiently obvious.

SPIRITUAL TELEGRAPHY.

QUESTION: "Will not spiritual telegraphy one day supersede our present system of physical telegraphy?"

Answer: "It is by no means an impossibility. On the contrary, it is highly probable. There is a class of minds who believe that the time is not far distant when this phase of spiritual science will be brought to earth and successfully used. It is unconsciously in action amongst you all the time. Mind is perpetually telegraphing to mind, all over the world, and surely it is very reasonable to suppose that the time will come when you will have a thorough understanding of the science, and will make it applicable to the external world—will make it of use. For thousands of years, aye, millions, for aught I know, the lightning was of no possible known service to man. He did not know that he could make use of it. In his savage state he feared it, and there were many who worshipped it, but none who understood its powers and how to make it of use to human life. By and by a Franklin arose, and the lightning became a toy in his hands. And in later years it is your most humble servant. Now, considering that the soul is marching through all conditions of being, analysing all and making all subservient to itself, it is very reasonable to suppose it will not overlook this."

From Flashes of Light from the Spirit Land through the Mediumship of Mrs. J. H. Conant. (Published in 1868.)

* Spiritualism-Its Ideas and Ideals, by David Gow. (Watkins).

Reincarnation is in the air again; but I do hope we shall not have too much of it, for life is short and Reincarnation is an endless theme. Moreover, as Mr. G. R. S. Mead once pointed out, a great many people are apt to mix up the idea of Reincarnation with pre-existence, which is quite another matter.

The Prince of Wales, in discussing Anglo-American relations with a representative of the American Cosmopolitan, is reported to have said that what was needed was "fewer experts and more human beings to settle our difficulties". That is a wise saying, and might be given an application to some of our psychical difficulties also.

* * *

"How is it," asks an inquiring reader, "that in Spiritualism we find people who, being strongly inclined to support some particular medium, seem always disposed to cast discredit on other mediums?" I can only say I do not know; it is human nature; but it is wonderful how many instances there are of the peculiarity which our inquiring friend has noted.

A Manchester paper considers that it would be a shock for the ex-Prime Minister to learn that his son Oliver is "to add to his notoriety by adding Spiritualism to his Socialism". But surely this is a very old tale, for Mr. Oliver Baldwin's interest in Spiritualism has long been known. Nor is it easy to see why the ex-Prime Minister should be shocked, in view of the number of well-known people who are constantly coming into the subject.

In an article on the Witch doctors of South Africa it is stated that blasting gelatine is occasionally added as one of the elements in their medical decoctions. This ought to be a strong ingredient, calculated to stir up the patient in the manner of the powerful medicine described in one of Mr. P. G. Wodehouse's stories—I mean the famous "Buck-U-Uppo", which had such stimulating effects on the bishop.

Some of the newspapers have been much impressed by statements from medical men concerning the possibility of prolonging human life indefinitely—"immortality" this is called. To the philosopher or the moralist this kind of immortality would seem a rather ghastly travesty of the true one. Certainly there are higher conceptions of the meaning of life than the chemical or physiological one. But these idealisms are, of course, not "scientific", and therefore to be severely repressed. Still, when some of our highly intelligent friends arrive on "the other side" and find how "unscientific" is the life there, I am sure they will be greatly distressed.

Now and again, in connection with some account of a ghost or haunting spirit, it is announced (with a kind of malicious chuckle) that no Medium was present, so that, inferentially, it could have nothing to do with Spiritualism. Now, in the first place, the people who make these confident statements cannot tell who are Mediums and who are not. Mediums do not go about bearing any outward and visible sign of their psychical quality—many people are Mediums, but are not conscious of it. Furthermore, as we know, it is not necessary always for a Medium to be present at the time of some psychic happening, for a powerful Medium who has dwelt long in some particular place will sometimes have so charged it with his own effluence (teleplasm, if you like) that even when he is not actually present psychic manifestations may occur. D. G.

TI

A FALSE IMPRESSION DISPELLED.

The North Cheshire Herald of August 9th publishes a lengthy article (it covers more than twenty-four inches, column width) by a writer giving the nom-de-plume of O.E.D. "Is Spiritualism true?" asks Q.E.D. He (or it may be she) is inclined to think that it is. Says the writer: "Spiritualism, of all cults, is probably the most misunderstood. Having gained all my knowledge of the subject, like many others, from stray articles in newspapers and magazines, I considered it an eerie and decidedly unhealthy kind of faith." However, this impression was dispelled by a first visit to a Spiritualist meeting at the Hyde Spiritualist Church. The experience was an impressive one; it upset a number of preconceptions that Q.E.D. had formed. He had imagined, for instance (I will assume for convenience that Q.E.D. is a man) that the meeting would be held in an atmosphere of "fearful expectancy"; there would be subdued lights and heavy shadows, also a pale-faced medium with "eyes like fathomless pools"; the congregation would comprise a crowd of anæmic-looking persons. In his mind's eyes Q.E.D. pictured the medium describing in a far-away voice the spirits whom he saw "stalking" among the audience, somewhat on these lines: "There—over there beside you! He's gradually building up. A man of about forty-five, clean-shaven, and blue-eyed. He is saying something. His name is Mark." And so on. Upon this, a woman in the audience recognising the description as that of her dead husband would "give a choking cry and sink back in her seat in a state of nervous collapse". Such was the scene Q.E.D. saw in anticipation. reality he found was startlingly different. He discovered that—to quote his own words:

The congregation was not a collection of pale and cranky-looking individuals, but an ordinary gathering of ordinary, sensible, and intelligent townsfolk. The speaker and clairvoyant, Mr. R. Davies, Manchester, was everything that a medium should not be according to the standards of the more highly-coloured modern fiction. Stoutly-built, fresh complexioned, and hearty in speech and manner, one would have taken him for anything other than a Spiritualist.

The atmosphere of the place, so far from being tense and awesome, was brighter, more free-and-easy than that of an ordinary church. Everyone seemed perfectly at ease, and it would have been difficult to imagine a saner and more comfortable gathering.

After delivering an address the Spiritualist speaker, Mr. Davies (Q.E.D. tells us) assumed the rôle of clairvoyant. Pointing to a lady in the middle of the hall Mr. Davies described a spirit standing at the side of her. The description at first was not recognised. The medium therefore gave fuller detail, adding, "he is holding what looks like a pie, and some peas, and he is saying with a smile 'You can't get these here."

That appeared to clinch the matter; the "pie and peas" had evidently some peculiar significance, for the lady agreed that this strange message was typical of the man she had known.

The experience has left Q.E.D. puzzled and interested. He disclaims any desire to pronounce a verdict upon Spiritualism but he invites readers of the North Cheshire Herald who have had psychic experiences to communicate with him.

WE learn that Mr. A. Vout Peters leaves London on the 14th September for Iceland. He expects to be away for a month or six weeks, fulfilling an engagement with The Psychical Research Society there.

JAMES HEWAT McKENZIE: AN APPRECIATION.

By Mrs. Rose Ch. de Crespigny.

Mr. McKenzie belonged to the type we are accustomed to describe as the stalwarts. In his own way he was an idealist, with the qualities of the pioneer, rugged, uncompromising; like his own countryman, John Knox, he never feared the face of any man. Having conspicuously the courage of his own opinions, he came out into the open as an exponent of psychic research during the War and set himself to give out the truths in which he believed, in his own fashion. Interested more particularly in the scientific side, he founded the British College of Psychic Science at 59, Holland Park, London, largely at his own expense, and with Mrs. McKenzie's able assistance set it in operation, defraying himself the deficiencies of the first years, until he quite reasonably felt he could bear the burden no longer and passed it into the hands of a Council which is its governing body to-day.

As one who has been for many years associated with the College, almost in fact from its inception, and as its present Chairman, I would like to record my high appreciation of its founder. Although rugged and direct in manner, in my experience Mr. McKenzie was a kind friend, always ready to give help where it was needed. The removal of the College to new premises in Queens Gate (now being carried out) meant desertion of the house, chosen, owned and furnished by himself; nevertheless, Mr. McKenzie showed never-failing and disinterested sympathy with the Council's scheme, and was ready to give advice and assistance whenever required.

And there was a side to his character perhaps little known to the world. I was present on an occasion when he and Mrs. McKenzie visited some "haunted" premises with a view to ridding it of its visitants. When the seance was over we were asked to pray for the earthbound spirits, and Mr. McKenzie gave one of the most beautiful extempore prayers I have ever heard.

Sympathy with Mrs. McKenzie in her loss will be widespread. We will hope she may be given strength to carry on the work, and continue for many years to be the life and soul of the British College.

AFFECTION AND JUDGMENT.

I am deeply moved to gratitude in view of the fact that, without any diminution of affectional and charitable feeling among mankind, this Age is one of Intelligence; and that passion, which is as blind and dangerous with its impulses in favour of, as in its opposition to, any person or object, is now being subjugated to the wisdom principle. Love and wisdom, or affection and judgment, are becoming more as one—the former supplying the soul with warmth, zeal, and impulse; the latter governing those zealous impulses, rendering the mind harmonious and happy, thus gradually bringing nations into religious unity and political confederation. But here I must utter my impression that many men have not yet acquired sufficient wisdom to keep them from rushing impetuously, like a tiger from his cage, into the commission of horrid crimes and murderous deeds; they start up at the war-shout, and their voices echo to the call for blood; and though prudence and deliberation begin to adorn the career of public, influential characters, in our own legislation—though many of their acts are tinted with the conservatism of wisdom-yet, should the nation become excited upon some great question of national policy, there is not sufficient wisdom and knowledge of Nature's laws among the masses to save the country from a most disastrous termination! It is well to know our internal weakness, both as individuals and as a nation, in order to be prepared for all emergencies. -Andrew Jackson Davis.

gth

the and lind s in eing and ing vith

and 0115 lust vet ing the eds;

10se

cho and blic, ugh ism ited here's rom

AUGUST 31, 1929.

LIGHT

The British College of Psychic Science, Ltd.,

Non. Principal, MRS, NEWAT MCKENZIE.

New premises new open - 15, QUEEN'S GATE, LONDON, S.W.7. (Telephone: Western 3981.)

New Syllabus on Application.

TRANCE MEDIUMSHIP. Private Appointments MRS. GARRETT TRANCE MEDIUMSHIP. Private Appointments MRS. MASON MRS. MASON

Trance Mediumship. Private Appointments MISS FRANCIS Clairvoyance and Psychometry. Private Appointments

MISS LILY THOMAS MR. G. P. SHARPLIN Psychic Diagnosis and Treatment. Private Students now being interviewed for Psychic Development. Afternoon and Evening Classes.

Group Clairvoyance. (Limited to 10. Bookings must be made). Friday, September 6th at 5 p.m. Mrs. Brittain.

VOL. VIII. No. 2. July, 1929 "PSYCHIC SCIENCE"

Special Illustrated Article on "Apport" Mediumship. Remarkable photographs, Healing Mediumship, etc. Editor: STANLEY DE BRATH, M.I.C.E. Best Psychic Quarterly in the World.

The "W. T. Stead" Borderland Library

Sample copy free

5, SMITH SQUARE, WESTMINSTER, S.W.1. (Four minutes from the Houses of Parliament.)

... MISS ESTELLE STEAD Hon. Secretary

Closed during alterations. Re-opening Monday, Sept. 16

THE LONDON SPIRITUAL MISSION.

13 PEMBRIDGE PLACE, BAYSWATER, W.

Sunday, September 1st, 11 a.m. Mr. GEORGE PRIOR Sunday, September 1st, 6.30 p.m. DR. W. J. VANSTONE Wednesday, September 4th, 7.30 p.m. (Clairvoyance) MR. A. VOUT PETERS

SEND FOR THEM NOW

2s. od. post free; 11s. yearly.

Published at 2/6 each, Offered at 1/6 each, post free

Signs, Omens and Superstitions.

Fortunes and Dreams

ASTRA CIELO.

The former gives particulars of popular superstitions, lucky and unlucky days, signs of good or bad luck, omens, etc., etc. The latter is a practical manual of fortune-telling, divination, and interpretation of dreams, signs and omens

Send your Order with remittance to:

"Light," 34 Paternoster Row, London, E.C.4

In Great Demand:

J. ARHUR HILL'S

PSYCHICAL SCIENCE & RELIGIOUS BELIEF

"The author of this book has been converted to a belief in survival and communication by the remarkable psychic powers of one of our best-known mediums, Mr. Aaron Wilkinson, to whom he pays a well-deserved tribute. Mr. Hill shows that Science and Religion meet in Spiritualism, which is, moreover, soundly based philosophically. The reports of sittings will interest all Spiritualists."

RIDER & CO., LONDON.

SOCIETY MEETINGS.

Lewisham.—Limes Hall, Limes Grove.—September 1st, 11.15, open circle; 6.30, Mrs. F. Kingston. September 4th, 8, Miss L. George.

Richmond Spiritualist Church, Ormond Road .- September 1st 7, Miss J. Proud, address and clairvoyance. September 4th, 7.30, Mrs. Fillmore. Croydon.—The New Gallery, Katharine Street.—September 1st, 6.30, Mme. Esta Cassel, address and clairvoyance.

Cricklewood.—Ashford Hall, 41, Ashford Road.—September 1st, 6.30, Mrs. Jones. September 4th, 3 and 8, Mrs. J. R. Yorke.

Marylebone Spiritualist Association, Ltd., ÆOLIAN HALL, NEW BOND STREET, W. PUBLIC WORSHIP, SUNDAYS AT 8.30.

Sunday, September 1st, at 6.30.

.... Rev. DRAYTON THOMAS MRS. CANNOCK Address Silver collection on entering.

TELEPHONE MUSEUM 0676. AT HEADQUARTERS. 4 Tavistock Square, W.C.1.

Participation in the following activities is confined to Members and Associates.

MEETINGS FOR PSYCHOMETRY AND CLAIRVOYANCE, Monday, Sept. 2nd, at 3 Psychometry MRS. CANNOCK Tuesday, Sept. 3rd, at 7.30 Clairvoyance MISS CAMPBELL Tuesday, Sept. 3rd, at 7.30 Clairvoyance MISS CAMPBELL
Thursday, Sept. 5th, at 7.30.... Clairvoyance MRS. A. JOHNSON

GROUP SEANCES FOR TRANCE & NORMAL CLAIRVOYANCE. Monday, September 2nd, at 7 MRS. A. JOHNSON Wednesday, 3rd, at 3 MR. E. SPENCER

SEANCES FOR DIRECT VOICE.

Monday, September 2nd, at 7.30 } MRS. HENDERSON Friday, September 6th, at 7.30

SEANCE FOR ECTOPLASMIC PHENOMENA (in Red Light) Wednesday, September 4th, at 7.30 MRS. HENDERSON

PRIVATE SITTINGS can be arranged with the following mediums: MRS. ESTELLE ROBERTS MRS. CANNOCK MR. GLOVER BOTHAM MISS CAMPBELL MRS. MORREL LIBRARY.

Nearly 2,000 volumes. Open daily, except Saturdays. YEARLY SUBSCRIPTION. Members 10/-, Associates 1/6. All correspondence to the Hon. Secretary, Frank Hawken.

WIMBLEDON SPIRITUALIST CHURCH,

(Accepting the Leadership of Jesus Christ.) 136 HARTFIELD ROAD, WIMBLEDON.

Sunday, September 1st, 11 a.m. Holy Communion MR. R. A. BUSH An invitation is given to all who love the Lord Jesus. Sunday, September, 1st, 6.30 p.m: MR. RICHARD BUSH "Angels and Archangels."

Wednesday, September 4th, 7:30 p.m. ... MRS. E. A. RAYFIELD Address, Spirit-descriptions and messages

Healing-no charge: Mondays, Tuesdays and Thursdays, 10 a.m. to 8 p.m. Wednesdays, 3 p.m. to 5.30 p.m.

SPIRITUALIST COMMUNITY

Morning and Evening

GROTRIAN HALL

115, Wigmore Street

(Nearest Station, Marble Arch or Bond Street).

SUNDAY, SEPTEMBER 1st,

11 a.m.—Speaker, Colonel Peacocke. 6.30 p.m.—Speaker, Mr. Hannen Swaffer. Clairvoyante: Mrs. Annie Johnson.

September 8th, II a.m., Mr. Ritherdon Clark. 6.30 p.m., Miss Tom-Gallon. Clairvoyante: Mme. Bishop Anderson.

A Spiritual Healing Service is included. Silver Collection.

Private Sittings with Mediums can be booked in ADVANCE. Healing Circles are held Mondays and Thursdays at 7 p.m. Application to be made to the Hon. Sec., 115 Wigmore Street, W 1. Tele.: Welbeck 6814

Psychic Unfoldment. PSYCHOSENSICS:

The Home Training Correspondence Course with a world-wide reputation.

Special Text Books by F. BRITTAIN.

Send for pamphlet, "The Key to the Gifts and Powers of the Spirit", with 11d. stamp for postage. Secretary: Psychosensic Training Institute, 28, St. Stephen's Road, London, W.2.

South African Representative: Mr. L. Charlston Goch, P.O. Box 4122, Johannesburg, South Africa. THE BOOK FOR ALL PSYCHIC STUDENTS.
s and their Interpretation", by F. BRITTAIN. Price 1/6,
Postage 2d. extra, or order from your bookseller.

Advertise your Society in "Light."

London Spiritualist Alliance, Ltd. Established 1884 Incorporated 1896

16, QUEENSBERRY PLACE, SOUTH KENSINGTON, LONDON, S.W.7.

President: Sir Arthur Conan Doyle, M.D., L.L.D. Vice-President: Robert Fielding-Ould, M.A., M.D., M.R.C.P.

Hon. Treasurer; Capt. A. A. Carnell, Hon. Librarian: Stanley De Brath, M.I.C.E Secretary: Miss Mercy Phillimore, Hours: Daily 10 a.m. to 6 p.m., Sats. 10 a.m.

Railways: District, Metro. Tube: Piccadilly. 'Buses: 14, 30, 49, 74, 96.

THE SYLLABUS OF THE AUTUMN SESSION IS NOW READY. POSTED FREE WITH PARTICULARS ON APPLICATION.

ORIGIN OF THE ALLIANCE:

More than fifty years ago, when enquiry into the evidence for Human Survival was at its beginnings, the leading London Society devoted to this question was the British National Association of Spiritualists, then established in Great Russell Street.

It was founded in 1873 by a group which numbered several distinguished men, amongst them the great naturalist, Alfred Russel Wallace, who was the co-discoverer with Darwin of the principle of Natural Selection. In 1884 the B.N.A.S. was reorganised under the title of the London Spiritualist Alliance. Later, as it grew in strength and importance, and the need was felt for making it a corporate body, application was made for a charter of incorporation, but this attempt failed; it was, however, incorporated in 1896 under the Philanthropic Clauses of the Companies Acts of 1862-3, with the result of becoming the London Spiritualist Alliance Limited. It may be mentioned that among the signatories of the Memorandum of Association in 1896 were Lord Radnor, the Hon. Percy Scawen Wyndham, Alfred Russel Wallace, F.R.S., General Drayson, and Mr. E. Dawson Rogers. At the present day the Alliance has the support of many men and women of high distinction.

THE VALUE OF READING:

The Alliance strongly advises the enquirer first to undertake a preparatory course of reading, even if it be comparatively short. There are several reasons for this. Communication between the two worlds may be a simple fact in Nature, and probably operates naturally and frequently without conscious awareness on our part. Those communications of which we are intellectually and emotionally aware, depend upon the exercise of the psychic faculties, which are by no means simple. We know comparatively little about them. They are associated with certain mental and physical peculiarities requiring much study.

RELATIONSHIP OF SITTER AND MEDIUM:

It will readily be seen that the enquirer who becomes familiar to some extent with the nature and scope of mediumship is better able to appraise the results of a sitting than one who comes with preconved notions, all of which may be influenced by mistaken ideas. The experimenter needs to be capable of sympathetic and intelligent response to what may be given him. He must use common-sense in this, as in all things; he must be content to accept and examine carefully in the light of his reason whatever is given to him. He will court failure if he demands particular It should be remembered that in every

psychic experiment the initiative and constructive work is from the spirit world. The medium is in effect a passive recording instrument and the sitter an observer. The sitter should also endeavour to be passive and sympathetic, merely recording all impressions and statements. The critical analysis should be made after, not during a seance.

The extreme delicacy of the psychic states should never be overlooked. The mediumistic gift is subject to constant variations in power and sensitivity. A variety of factors go to make either good or bad conditions. The gift itself varies in power. The psychic state of a medium may harmonise with the psychic state of a sitter, or it may not. The experiment is influenced not only by the state of mind of the sitter at the time of the experiment, but by his general mental condition and character. As in ordinary human Society, some people mix with their fellows more easily than others, so in psychic experiments some combinations are favourable and others unfavourable. Every sitting is thus in the nature of an experiment. The sincere enquirer with an open mind, will receive experiences of a supernormal nature, and usually, when he has the co-operation of an interested spirit friend, he will sooner or later obtain evidence of the identity of his friend.

Psychic experimentation naturally involves subtleties of a psychological nature, the variety of which can never be understood without some acquaintance with the whole range of psychic phenomena.

EXPERIMENTAL WORK:

Arrangements can be made for members to have private sittings with all mediums approved by the Council, either in the rooms of the Alliance or at the home of the medium or member as may be mutually convenient.

SUBSCRIPTION:

For a membership fee of ONE GUINEA PER ANNUM—a very moderate subscription for all the advantages offered—the Alliance provides a centre for enquirers and for convinced Spiritualists, where meetings, lectures, and investigations are regularly carried

The use of the Library, of its kind the most extensive and complete in existence, is alone worth this subscription.

Library Catalogue 1/-, Bibliography 1d. (Classified list of books recommended to enquirers).

NEW MEMBERS JOINING ON OR AFTER OCTOBER IST ARE CREDITED WITH MEMBERSHIP UNTIL DECEMBER 31ST OF THE FOLLOWING YEAR.

The L.S.A. is an Unsectarian Body.

BOOKS FOR SALE.

Orders may be placed for all books on or relating to Spiritualism and Psychic Research. Terms, cash with order.

Four Miles from Any Town.—David Gow. 3/8. The Seekers.—Ed. by Rosa M. Barrett. 6/6. Scripts of Cleophas.—G. D. Cummins. 13/-. James Hyslop X, His Book.—G. O. Tubby. 20/6. Book of True Dreams.—M. E. Monteith. 8/-. Health: Its Recovery and Maintenance.—Edit by R. H. Saunders. 6/6.

Spiritualism in the Bible—E.W.& M.H.Wallis, 2/2 Spirit Teachings.—"M.A. (14xon.)." 6/6.

Stainton Moses.—More Spirit Teachings. 1/8.

Clairvoyance and Materialisation — Gustave Geley. 15/6. Geley. 15/6.
After Death. Letters from Julia.—W. T. Stead.
2/9.

2/9.
Towards the Stars.—H. D. Bradley. 3/9.
Wisdom of the Gods.—H. D. Bradley. 8/.
Felicia R. Scatcherd Memorial Lecture.—S. De
Brath. 1/1.
Objections to Spiritualism Answered.—H. A.
Dallas. 1/1.

Human Personality, and its Survival of Bodily Death.—F. W. H. Myers. 3/10.
Raymond Revised.—Sir Oliver Lodge. 6/6.
Psychical Experiences of a Musician.—Florizel von Reuter. 8/-.
Researches into the Phenomena of Spiritualism.—Sir William Crookes. 3/9.
Man's Survival After Death.—Rev. Chas. L. Tweedale. 11/-.
Is Death the End?—J. H. Remmers. 8/-.

The following back-numbers of Psychic Research, the Journal of the American S.P.R., may be obtained price 2/2 post free per copy: January, February, March, and April, 1929.

Ouija and Planchette Combinations at 7/6; Trumpets for direct voice phenomena, 7/10; Crystals, from 13/-.

All Classified A WEDIUMS' ADV os and psychic

> BISHOP pirational Speaker. G. P. SHARPLI

liany successful abser RONALD BRAILEY Fridays, 8 p.m. Circl Gardens, N.W.4. 'Bus

MARGARET McCAI worn, 5/- P.O., wit Telephone: 923. MME. MANYA RIC

Trance Medium recei INDIAN PALMIST Horoscopes. See Da

MADAME JEANE C Psychometriste, in visited. Readings by date, years and place Court, S.W.5. Near

MISS LILIAN WA Sittings by appointion.—24, Carlton V

CHARLES A. SIN MADAME VIVIA

Out of Town duri KEIRO, A 45, The World's Pr

GORDON SHAR Road) Chelsea, S. ton. Phone: Flax

CHELSEA PSYC

IL

of

al

of

CLASSIFIED ADVERTISEMENTS.

The charge for Small Classified Advertisements is 1/- per line. Send with Remittance to: ADVERTISEMENT MANAGER, "LIGHT", N Paternoster Row, London, E.C.4.

All Classified Advertisements must be Prepaid

MEDIUMS' ADVERTISEMENTS. It is essential that mediums and psychics advertising in LIGHT shall give references as to their bona fides, whether as members of established spiritualists Societies or otherwise.

MISCELLANEOUS.

MADAME BISHOP ANDERSON, Clairvoyante, Clairaudient. Inspirational Speaker. Advice on Spiritual Development, etc. 20 years' experience. Spiritual Healing. Appointments 11—7. Saturday 11—4. Clients visited. 'Phone: Gerrard 4163, or enquiries Gerrard 1712. Arcade House, 27, Old Bond Street, Piccadilly. (13)

MR. G. P. SHARPLIN. Can be seen by appointment at the British College of Psychic Science, 59, Holland Park, W.11. ('Phone: Park 4709.) Many successful absent treatment cases.

RONALD BRAILEY, Clairvoyant. Daily, 11 to 6. Tuesdays and Fridays, 8 p.m. Circles 1/-. Obsession treated. Post advice 5s.—90, Sunny Gardens, N.W.4. 'Bus 605, Golders Green. 'Phone: Hendon 1888. (30)

MARGARET McCALLUM, Highland Seer. Call or send small article worn, 5/- P.O., with age.—Auchudalvorie, 69, Eldon Street, Greenock. Telephone: 923. (18)

MME. MANYA RICKARD, Clairvoyante, Clairaudient, X-ray and Trance Medium receives daily. Advice by post, send articles, 5/ or 2/6.—44 Pembridge Road, next to Notting Hill Gate Station. Tel: Park 2867. (36)

INDIAN PALMIST gives Scientific Reading and Advice: Clairvoyance, Horoscopes. See Daily Mail and Popular Science articles. Eastern Studio, 21, George Street, Baker Street. 'Phone: Amb. 8819.—Appointments 11-7.

MADAME JEANE CAVENDISH, the well-known Palmist, Clairvoyante, Psychometriste, interviews daily, 11-8. Parties, At Homes, and Clients visited. Readings by Numerology, Horoscopes. Advice by post. Send Birth date, years and place of birth.—2, Nevern Road, Cromwell Crescent, Earls Court, S.W.5. Near Station. Tel.: Kelvin 8415.

MISS LILIAN WALBROOK ("The Case of Lester Coltman"). Private Sittings by appointment. Thursdays, 4 p.m., Tea, Music, and Demonstration.—24, Carlton Vale, Maida Vale, N.W.6. 'Phone: Maida Vale 1971.

CHARLES A. SIMPSON, the Healer (Control, Dr. Lascelles), receives patients daily by appointment at 29, Queen's Gate, Kensington, S.W.7.

(26)

MADAME VIVIAN, 37 Upper Berkeley St., W.1. Paddington 2168.
Out of Town during August. (35)

KEIRO, Author "Practical Palmistry" etc., 45, Lancaster Gate, London, W. 2.

The World's Premier Palmist. Pure Rock Crystals with instructions.

Phone: Paddington 4908. (128)

GORDON SHARPE, "The Celebrated Psychic" and Society Clairvoyant, receives daily 10 to 6 p.m. (by appointment) at 13 Callow St. (off Fulham Road) Chelsea, S.W.3. Buses 14,96; 11,19,22; Underground South Kensing ton. Phone: Flaxman 7527. (193)

CHELSEA PSYCHIC CENTRE, 45 Manor Street, S.W.3 (by Chelsea Town Hall). 'Phone Flaxman 4930. Buses 11, 19, 22, 49. PROF. J. de MORO LEE, D.P.S.P., consulting Clairvoyant and Psychometrist, of 15a York Rd., Hove, attends every Tuesday from 11 till 8. Circle for Psychometry at 8.30. Fee 2/6. OPEN TO ALL SEEKERS. (211)

ASTROLOGY: Character, influences: any question emphasised. Many grateful letters. Send birth-time, date and place, 1/-P.O. and stamp. Aquarius, c/o LIGHT, 34, Paternoster Row, E.C.4. (186)

ASTROLOGY. Horoscope 5/-; detailed readings, 10/- and 20/-Send birth date, time if known.

Personal interview 5/- or 10/-.—Miss
A. Bull, 36 Shaftesbury Ave. W. Phone Reg. 6896.

NUMBERS and ASTROLOGY.—Help and guidance from name vibration. Send names (married woman maiden), date, place of birth. P.O. 5/-. Single question 2/6,—Miss Dyer, 102, Brompton Rd, London. (221)

MRS. MOSS, Developing Circle Re-opens Monday, September 9th, 8 p.m. Thursdays, 7.30 p.m. Readings. Private Sittings by appointment.—38, Tytherton Road, Tufnell Park, N.19. 'Phone: Archway 3394.

MISS MANSFIELD away until September 9th.

PARTNER LECTURER or Psychic Demonstrator, join another to organize public meetings. Fifty-fifty. Letters to Secretary, Library, 31 (269)

FREE ASTROLOGICAL TEST, LIFE READING. Stamped envelope and birth-date. Jesse Roy, 27K, Custom House Street, Cardiff. (277)

Have you ordered your copy of the September issue of

"The Occult Review"?

Price1/-ofall Booksellers & Newsagents

SEASIDE AND COUNTRY HOTELS, APARTMENTS, ETC.

BRIGHTON.

BOARDING ESTABLISHMENT. All bedrooms hot and cold water electric light, gas fires; pure, varied, generous diet. Write for tariff.—Mr. and Mrs. Massingham, 17, Norfolk Terrace, Brighton. (24)

PENZANCE.

IDEAL GUEST HOUSE, FACING SEA, magnificent sea views from every room, quiet yet central, vegetarian and mixed diet.—Tariff, Mrs. Wittey, The Abbey. (32)

DEVON.

HUT TO LET, furnished as Bed-sitting-room.—Miss E. Dale, Tor Cottage, Kingston, Kingsbridge, South Devon. (255)

MISCELLANEOUS.

MRS. CANTLON, Automatic Writing and Trance Mediumship. Psychometry. Private sittings by appointment only. Developing classes, Mondays. —10, Cliveden Place, Sloane Square. S.W.1. 'Phone: Sloane 6909. (20)

MRS. ANNETTA BANBURY, the well-known Clairvoyante (appoint-ments by letter only); fee 5s. "At Homes" attended. Sir Arthur Conan Doyle's kind tribute. Sir Arthur says he heard nothing but good of Mrs. Banbury, who is a true Medium.—Mrs. Annetta Banbury, Sandwell Mansions, Flat 2 (entrance floor), West End Lane, West Hampstead, N.W.6. (49)

LET ME HELP YOU. It is my business to solve problems.—
(For health see below.)—Write particulars to Mrs. McGlashan, 55a, Weymouth Street, London, W.I. Send P.O. 5/-. (131)

LET ME HEAL YOU. Mrs. McGlashan, Constructive Psychologist, Mind Healer, treats daily by appointment only at 55a, Weymouth Street London, W.I. Phone Welbeck 9613. (131)

MISS BAKER, Clairvoyante and Psychometriste, advice given daily, to to 6 or by appointment—15, Coleville Terrace, Bayswater, W. 1. (27)

PSYCHOMETRY from small articles worn or used, letters or writing.

Send postal order 2s. 6d. (stamped envelope appreciated.)—Miss Janet
Lamenby, 4, Darley Drive, West Derby, Liverpool. (31)

MADAME MARCH. Character reading and advice from Personal Vibrations or Handwriting. Consultations by letter or interview; fee 10s. Letters c/o Light, 34 Paternoster Row, E.C.4. Phone, between 10 and 12, Vic. 1631. (138)

EXPERT ADVICE on business, health, etc. Send article used, birth-date, 2/6 P.O.—Miss Daunton, 94, Crowther Road, Sth. Norwood, S.E 25.

MRS. LILLY, the East End Healer, has removed to 19, Stourcliffe Street, Edgware Road, W.2 (near Marble Arch). Miraculous cures effected. Trance diagnosis by spirit doctor. Clairvoyant and Clairaudient. Many successful absent treatment cases. Fees very moderate. Write for appointment.

HEALER, White Ray; direct or absent treatment. Personal testimonials. Write, Box 383, c/o LIGHT, 34 Paternoster Row, E.C.4 (117)

GOOD HOUSEMAID WAITRESS WANTED for Spiritualists' Rest Home.—Nightingale House, 1, Clarendon Terrace, Marine Parade, Brighton.

ARTISTIC HAND-LEATHERWORK and Glove-making. Ladies and Gentlemen required immediately to undertake remunerative homework. Experience unnecessary. Materials supplied; output secured.—Mitchell's, 69, Newman-Street, London. (253)

PSYCHOMETRY FROM LETTERS, personally written.—Frederick Ritchie, B.Sc., Trance Medium and Clairvoyant, Consultant, advises on health, business, matrimony, etc. Direct questions answered. Stp., add., birth-date, is. P.O. Hundreds of grateful clients. Wonderful results with hauntings and ghosts. Go anywhere, private sittings. Frederick Ritchie, B.Sc., Whitelake View, Flixton, Lanes.

HELEN, THE GREEK, writes up your former incarnation story from photographs (snap shots preferred), and birth date. Occult and Mystic Lessons by correspondence. Fees 5/6 and 10/6.—Address, "Helen the Greek," c/o Light, 34, Paternoster Row, London, E.C.4. (264)

SISTER MICHAEL, Mental and Physical Healer. Rejuvenation, Obesity, Nervous Complaints, individually treated with safe, certain, beneficial results. Consultation fee 5/-. Course of treatment moderate. Write for appointment, Sister Michael, 19 Chatsworth Gardens, Acton, W.3.

(278)

WANTED for Direct Voice Developing Circle (London) members with Voice power partly or fully developed..—Box 384, c/o LIGHT, 34, Paternoster Row, E.C.4.

Advertisers Note!

All copy for advertisements must be received on Saturday prior to date of publication. For proofs one week earlier.

No advertisements will be received after 4.30 on Mondays.

THE WISE BOOK THAT ALL PARENTS HAVE BEEN WAITING FOR!

The PSYCHOLOGY of YOUTH

by Jessica G. COSGRAVE

A BOOK FOR PARENTS.

Crown 8vo, 144 pp., 3/6 net.

Paternoster Row RIDER & CO.

London

A NEW WORK BY

SYDNEY T. KLEIN

"Science of the Infinite," "Way of Attainment," etc.

The Garden of Enchantment

(For Old and Young Alike.)

A charmingly-written and inspiring work which, by means of a penetrating study of the functions of Nature, opens out a beau iful garden in which the mind of the reader, whether young or old, can wander amid great beauty, gathering to itself a new richness and a knowledge of profound truth. It should be read and studied by all whose desire is to understand and to attain that state of tranquillity and peace which alone can result in a happiness admitting of no desecration.

Large Crown 8vo. 4/6 net.



Tastefully produced.

Paternoster Row RIDER & CO. London, E.C.4

LIGHT

To the Circulation Manager, "LIGHT,"

34/6 PATERNOSTER Row,

LONDON, E.C.4.

Sir,

Please send me 'LIGHT" weekly for six months twelve months post free, for which I enclose cheque postal order for 11/- 22/-

Name

Address.

DATE

3/6

Nowadays a psychic script must offer something more than its mere novelty. Here, then, is something differentsomething which breathes an earnestness astender as it is compelling; something suffused with the spirit of Him whose sojourn on this earth has left a fragrance which shall endure as long as humanity itself. The theme of this little work is that band of Invisible Helpers who, from the other side of the veil of flesh, carry out the will of their Master in ministering to

THE SOUL'S JOURNEY

The Cross Bearer. The Doctor's Unseen Friend. A Child's Experience. A Dweller in the Under-World. The Invisible Helper. The Hermit. A Soul's Experience in Purgatory. From Darkness unto Light. The Priceless Gift. "In My Father's House are many Mansions". One of the Many Mansions.

Paternoster Row RIDER & CO. London, E.C.4